ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

All

March 17, 2009
3:05 p.m

Co-Chair
Co-Chair

Bob Herron,
Wes Kel l er,
John Coghi | |
Bob Lynn

Paul Seat on
Sharon Ci ssna
Li ndsey Hol nes

menber s present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO.
"An Act

O f ender
of Cvil

relating
relating to the State Council
Super vi si on;
Pr ocedur e;

141

to the Interstate Conpact for Juveniles;
for Interstate Adult and Juvenile
anmending Rules 4 and 24(b), Alaska Rules

and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 141 OUJT OF COW TTEE

Present ati on:

- HEARD

Onbudsman' s Report on OCS

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 141

SHORT TI TLE: COVPACT FOR JUVEN LES;
REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 23/ 09
02/ 23/ 09
03/ 17/ 09

| NTERSTATE COUNCI L

(H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
(H) HSS, JUD
(H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE

March 17, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 141, as the prime sponsor.

AVANDA MORTENSEN, St af f

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 141, on behalf of the prine
sponsor of the bill, Representative Coghill.

TONY NEWWVAN, Social Services Program O ficer

Di vi sion of Juvenile Justice (DJJ)

Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 141.

BARBARA MURRAY, Deputy Conpact Adm ni strator

Di vi sion of Juvenile Justice (DJJ)

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 141.

CAROL BRENCKLE, Chair

Al aska Juvenil e Justice Advisory Conmittee (AJJAC
Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 141.

LI NDA LORD- JENKI NS, Onbudsman

O fice of the Orbudsman

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the QOrmbudsnman report on the
Ofice of Children's Services (COCS).

TAMMY SANDOVAL, Director

Central Ofice

O fice of Children's Services (QOCS)

Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on the Onbudsman's
report.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3: 05: 08 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 17, 2009



CO- CHAIR BOB HERRON cal |l ed the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3:05 p. m
Representatives Herron, Keller, Seaton, and Coghill were present
at the call to order. Representatives Cissna, Lynn, and Hol nes
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 141- COVPACT FOR JUVENI LES; | NTERSTATE COUNCI L

3:05:28 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 141, "An Act relating to the Interstate
Conmpact for Juveniles; relating to the State Council for
Interstate Adult and Juvenile O fender Supervision; amending
Rules 4 and 24(b), Aaska Rules of GCwvil Procedure; and
providing for an effective date."

3:06:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL, Al aska State Legislature, explained
that conpacts were a legal and technical nmeans for states to do
things without intervention from the federal governnent. He
poi nted out that state |laws were dynam c and required agreenents
between states, in this case for the interstate managenment of
juveniles. He noted that this original conpact dated from 1955,
and that an update was necessary.

3:07:07 PM

AMANDA MORTENSEN, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, said that HB 141 was a replacenent for the
1955 conmpact and would ensure the supervision of juvenile
of fenders and the return of runaways. She reported that HB 141
provided the procedural neans to regulate court supervised
juveniles across state |ines. She estimated that this conpact
woul d be used in 20,000 cases annually. She pointed out that HB
141 woul d ensure that all states had identical statute |anguage,
and it would provide enforcenent procedures. She affirnmed that
it would allow for the collection and sharing of standardized
information. She shared that this would allow states to operate

wi t hout federal intervention. She observed that 35 states had
passed this conpact, with 6 other states considering it. She
identified that Al aska would need to deal wth each state on a
case by case basis, if this conpact was not approved. She

concluded that the conpact provided for the safety of the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2009



juvenile offender and the state, and that it ensured public
safety and security.

3:09:04 PM

TONY NEWAN, Social Services Program Oficer, Dvision of
Juvenil e Justice (DJJ), Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS), explained that his [division] was the overseer of the
current conpact, and that DJJ supported HB 141. He reported
that DJJ supervised the interstate travel for about 160 court
supervi sed juveniles. He agreed that this was necessary for
public safety and he said that it was necessary to update the
conpact. He offered to give a brief overview of HB 141.

3:10: 23 PM

MR. NEWWAN reported that HB 141 had 6 major points. He shared
that the new conpact would support the establishnment of a
national conpact authority to independently admnister the
rules, and that the conpact authority would have Al askan
representatives who were appointed by the governor. He
expl ai ned that Al aska would be subject to sanctions for failure
to neet the expectations of the conpact. He noted that Al aska
would collect data and provide information requested by the
nati onal authority. He allowed that there would be a higher
dues structure. He said that the conpact required establishment
of a state council to deal with state juvenile conpact issues.
He noted that the existing Al askan adult supervision counci
woul d now becone an oversight council for both juvenile and
adul t of f enders.

3:12: 34 PM

MR. NEWVAN, in response to Representative Coghill, explained
that the responsibility for the appointnment of the conpact
adm nistrator had been delegated by the governor to the
conmi ssi oner .

3:13:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked about the sanctions.

3:13:34 PM

MR. NEWVAN responded that the sanction rules were still being
devel oped.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2009



3:13:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if Alaska would sign on wthout
knowi ng the sancti ons.

3:14: 03 PM

MR. NEWVMAN said that this was the sanme for all the states.

3:14: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL all owed that he had the sane concern. He
expl ai ned that the conpact commi ssioner would represent Al aska
in the devel opnent of these rules.

3:14: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what was defined by the wuniform
rul es.

3:15:15 PM

MR. NEWVAN expl ained that the rules were for all of the juvenile
justice, state to state, youth transfers across the country.

3:15:41 PM

CO- CHAIR HERRON asked about the nunber of youth annually
transferred in Al aska.

3:15:51 PM

MR. NEWVAN replied that each year about 160 youth cane into and
| eft Al aska.

CO CHAIR HERRON asked if the youth were under the jurisdiction
of other states.

3:16:14 PM

MR. NEWVAN replied that some were.

3:16:43 PM

BARBARA MJRRAY, Deputy Conpact Adm nistrator, Division of

Juvenile Justice (DJJ), Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS), explained that there were youth, in need of supervision

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2009



and under probation jurisdiction, travelling from Al aska to be
with famly. She reported that about 37 Al askan youth left the
state, and about 40 youth canme to Alaska to be with famly or
guardians and to finish their probation.

3:17: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how often states were in conflict
r egar di ng managenent of yout h Crossing jurisdictional
boundari es. He also asked how this conflict was resol ved, and

how Al aska coul d defend itself, within the conpact.
3:18: 23 PM

M5. MURRAY, in response to Representative Coghill, said that the
current conpact was an association of juvenile conpact
adm ni strators. She explained that any issues of youth novenent
bet ween states were brought to the association, even though the
group had no jurisdiction. She conceded that the sanctions were
very weak. She noted that Al aska had not been involved with any
i ssues for many years. She explained that the new conpact could
have financial sanctions. She said that a state's dism ssal
from the conpact would then require a nenorandum of
understanding (MOU) for every youth who required supervision
when entering or |eaving the state. She allowed that this would
be a "resource drain" for any state. She reported that the new
conpact allowed for mediation prior to any financial sanctions.

3:20: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL established that this was not an
arbitrary authority, but an interlocking system for juvenile
transfers.

3:21:32 PM

CAROL  BRENCKLE, Chair, Al aska Juvenile Justice Advisory
Commttee (AJJAC), explained that AJJAC was an Al askan advisory
board, appointed by the governor, to oversee inplenentation of
the federal Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act
wi thin Al aska. She said that AJJAC had been following this
national conpact legislation for many years, and was excited
that Alaska would be adopting the interstate conpact. She
acknow edged the "resource drain” to individually negotiate all
the issues instead of having a conpact, and that a conpact was
necessary to ensure public and child safety and welfare in

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2009



Al aska. She referenced the letter sent from AJJAC which
endorsed HB 141. [Included in menbers' packets.]

3:26:11 PM
CO CHAI R HERRON asked about an adult conpact.

MR. NEWVAN replied that the legislature had adopted a simlar
conpact in 2003, which was now in place at the Departnent of
Corrections.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that there were several conpacts
that dealt with adults.

CO CHAI R HERRON cl osed public testinony.
3:27:31 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER noved to report HB 141 out of commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection, HB 141 was reported from the House
Heal th and Soci al Services Standing Conmttee.

3:27:49 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON announced that the final order of business would
be a Presentation on the Orbudsman's Report on OCS.

3:28: 03 PM

LI NDA LORD- JENKI NS, Orbudsman, O fice of the Orbudsman, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that the Ofice of the Orbudsman
was created to investigate citizen conplaints against the State
of Al aska admi nistrative agencies. She listed the conplaints to
include actions that were contrary to law, unreasonable or
unfair, mstake of fact, arbitrary, or on inproper grounds. She
explained that the investigations were to find an appropriate
remedy, and for recommendations to correct the problem She
menti oned sone issues that were exenpted from an Onrbudsman's
investigation to include: issues that had been decided by a
court, a conplaint that challenged the substantive decision of
an adm nistrative hearing or appeal, or issues that could be
resolved by admnistrative appeal. She nentioned that the
jurisdiction was limted to State of Alaska agencies. She
reported the Onbudsman's powers to include: nmaking inquiries to
obtain information, entering wthout notice as l|long as agency

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2009



staff was present, holding public hearings, and accessing state

agency records. She noted that the Orbudsman mnust retain
confidentiality. She said that the office could conpel, by
subpoena, the wtness' appearance, sworn testinmony, and the
production of records. She affirnmed that it had the authority

to go to court to conpel testinony.
3:32:31 PM
M5. LORD- JENKI NS announced in her annual report that the nunber

of conplaints against Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) and the Ofice of Children's Services (0OCS) had

"skyrocketed" in 2008. She reported that DHSS conplaints
conprised 25 percent of the total caseload, an increase of nore
than 7 percent. She nentioned that the total conplaints also

i ncreased in 2008. She said that conplaints against OCS al nost
doubled in 2008, from 73 conplaints to 140 conplaints, which was
15 percent of the caseload. She disclosed that she did not know
the reason for the increase. She said that OCS and the Citizens
Revi ew Panel had always included the Onrbudsman's office as an
option to aggrieved parents. She shared that nost legislator's
newsl etters included a brief about the Orbudsman. She opi ned
that the governor's office mght also be referring nore
conpl ai nt s. She reported that the nost conplaints in 2008, and
again in 2009, were for issues involving "relative placenent,"
"notice of proceedings,” and "reports of harm" She di scl osed
that nost conplaints had nore than one allegation. She
confirmed that the geographic distribution for conplaints
remai ned about the same, Southcentral, Southeast, and then the
Nort hern areas. She pointed out that few rural conplaints were
recei ved. She said that her office was conplaint driven; they
took specific issues and | ooked at the broader issues that these
hi ghlighted. She reiterated that the Onbudsman's nmandate was to
prevent recurrence of the problem She explained that the
Orbudsman did not advocate for individuals, but for their
rights. There were other issues for her office to review, she
sai d, including relative placenent, visitation, i nadequat e
notice, reports of harm and foster parents. She expl ained the
different paths for conplaint review, which included a quick
assist or decline, advise to file a grievance, or the rights to
appeal . She said that the agency helped direct people within
the process, and that the Orbudsman's office wanted people to
work with the agency. She described the initiation of a form
investigation. She relayed that, sonetinmes, once the interviews
and research began, agencies wuld admt to a wongful ness and
nmove to fix the problem She noted that the Orbudsnan woul d
di scontinue its invol venent at that point.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2009



3:39:48 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS explained that the formal investigation was
driven by statute and was very tine consum ng. She detailed
that it included interviews, sworn statenents, and subpoenas.
She said that the review included an assessnent of the policies
and procedures to determne if these were followed, and were
| egal, reasonable, and fair. She explained that the report was
submtted to the agency, wth recomendations to prevent a
recurrence. She indicated that the agency's response was
incorporated into a final report. She called attention to the
exanple of a report that was included in the nenbers' packets.

3:41: 48 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS explained that the Onbudsman's office was
bundling cases of conparable issues, categorizing them and
conbining them into a single report. She said that the
departnment was conducting investigative surveys of agency
practices and she supplied sone exanpl es.

3:44: 40 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS offered her thoughts on ways to meke this
report nore useful to the House Health and Social Services
Standing Conmittee. She shared that her office had a cunul ative
100 years of experience, and that she had asked each of her
staff to share two things about OCS that the House Health and
Social Services Standing Commttee should know. She read from
this catal og of coments, and noted reasons for each: visitation
for a prisoner could be nore often than for a child;
difficulties for an agency worker to mmintain regular contact
with parent and children; non-responsiveness of case workers;
disregard for relatives of a <child in custody; relative
pl acenent ; notice of court proceedings; and inconsistent
treatment to the grandparents of the child in custody. She
shared that a mission of OCS was to keep the fam |y together.

3:51:14 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS shared that another problem was for the
knowl edge of and adherence to policy, procedures, statutes, and
regul ati ons. She gave exanples from the case study nentioned
earlier. [Included in the nenbers' packets.] She hi ghlighted
that a major problem was the |lack of staff awareness for policy
and procedures, and she offered exanples from OCS and the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 17, 2009



Departnment of Health and Social Services. She pointed out the
problem with the "intelligibility of policies and procedures,”
and she shared that three of the Onbudsman's investigators, each
an attorney, had agreed that these were difficult to understand.

3:56: 05 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS continued wth the catalog of comments and
reasons: the difficulties faced when not being able to retain
casewor kers. She sunmarized with a comment from an experienced
i nvestigator:

The work they try to do is sonme of the toughest, nost
consequential work done by any state enpl oyee because
they work with the nost dysfunctional people in the
state trying to protect the nobst vul nerable people in

the state. The staff they have to do this work is
often under qualified, undertrained, under supervised,
under pai d, and underm ned by constant turnover. The

result of adding one and two is the series of small
tragedies unfolding in the lives of scores of Al askan
famlies every day of the week.

3:57:32 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA, referring to the "dysfunctional people,"”

shared that it was generational and that it continued to grow
She opined that it was no |longer possible to get preventative

attention, identified this as a "cultural car weck," and
assessed that this growing cost "would jeopardize the
functionality of state governnent." She asked what role the

commttee could assume for inprovenent.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL explained the history of the onbudsman
office, and offered his belief that the increase of conplaints
was in recognition for the credibility of its work. He noted
that the citizen review panel was now very active. He commented
that each of the points which Ms. Lord-Jenkins had rai sed needed
to be revi ewed.

4:04:16 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL referred to the staff turnover and the
entry level qualifications, and asked whether the newy hired
staff were prepared for the work, but not the casel oad.

4:04: 45 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 17, 2009



M5. LORD-JENKINS said that no specific research was done on
t hat .

4:05:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that college |evel social work
prepared good social workers, but not good |egal technicians.
He opined that the expectation was to be a social worker, but
that the job demanded them to also be a legal technician and an
"enforcer."”

4:06:59 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that she
was hired for a five year appointnent, through a bi-partisan
commttee fromboth the House and the Senate. She said that the
statute allowed the Onbudsman to serve a nmaxi num of three five-
year terms. She responded that the Orbudsman could be fired by
the | egislature.

4:09:11 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that
there were only five "general jurisdiction state-w de onbudsman”
in the U S She said that the nmjority were departnental or
"executive" ombudsnen, who were dedicated to children's
servi ces. She offered her belief that the independence of the
Al askan onbudsman nodel made it the strongest, and allowed for
the best quality of work. She observed that nobst "executive"
onbudsman reported to the person they were overseeing.

4:10: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON acknow edged that sonme of the changes to
| egislative interaction with constituents had put nore |oad on
t he Onbudsnan's office. He asked if a limt to the nunber of
casel oads for an OCS social worker would alleviate a lot of the
pr obl ens.

4:12:24 PM

M5. LORD-JENKINS replied that the pay for caseworkers in OCS was
very low, and that the work |oad was very large. She said that
the wirk was tinme consum ng, gruel i ng, and frequently
unr ewar di ng. She offered her belief that nore workers would
allow a better opportunity for better work.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2009



4:13:35 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON asked to wverify that 10-15 percent of the
Onbudsman's office workload was OCS related, and what were the
ot her hi gh workl oad categori es.

4:14: 02 PM

M5. LORD JENKINS agreed about the OCS workl oad. She responded
that the highest workloads were, in nunerical order, Departnent
of Health and Social Services (DHSS), and the Departnment of
Corrections (DOC), although DOC did not require as mnuch tine.
She shared that the other high work |loads were from the Ofice
of Children's Services, Departnment of Public Safety, D vision of
Mot or Vehicles, Public Defender Agency, and Ofice of Public
Advocacy. She said that Departnent of Natural Resources and
Permanent Fund Dividend D vision cases had also increased
slightly.

4:15:20 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON concurred with the earlier remarks, and he said
that the legislative office should be able to direct people to
t he appropriate agency.

4:16:15 PM

TAMMY SANDOVAL, Director, Central Ofice, Ofice of Children's
Services (OCS), said that she appreciated the work of the
Onbudsman' s of fice. She agreed that the nunbers of conplaints
had increased, although there were fewer direct conplaints to
her office. She noted that she appreciated the work of the
Onbudsman's office, but that she wanted the opportunity to
resolve the issues within her division.

4:19:39 PM

M5. SANDOVAL said that she appreciated the conpl eteness of the
investigative report fromthe Onbudsman's office. She said that
nore than 30 percent of the staff was turning over. She offered
her belief that the nore robust training curriculum due to nore
training noney, would increase the retention rate. She said
that it was hard to ensure that a worker knew everything, but
that staff retention, which included an institutional know edge,
woul d be a big help in attaining that.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2009



4:21:56 PM

M5. SANDOVAL requested that the legislature hire nore staff for
t he Orbudsnman's office to ensure a nore tinmely response.

4:23:19 PM

M5. SANDOVAL referred to visitation and confirmed that nore
frequent contact was necessary to reunify famlies. She
expl ained a new program that redefined the different |evels for
supervised visits and could allow for nore visitations. She

expl ained that by providing guidance and training to all the
staff who worked with the children's court, there would be
agreenent on the protocols for visitations. She said that would
allow other partner agency staff to be there for the
visitations, not just OCS staff, and would now include
unsupervi sed visits. She also explained that the grant |anguage
for private agencies regarding visitation support would now
better explain the service expectations.

4:26:46 PM

M5. SANDOVAL nentioned that OCS had begun to research the
policies and procedures of other states, and would revise the
Al aska manual . She said that this would include practice
gui delines for the staff.

4:28: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked what could be done for the problens
with job classifications which resulted in lower pay for nore
qgual i fied peopl e.

4:31:19 PM
M5. SANDOVAL responded that the Department of Adm nistration was

conducting a salary study. She opined that this would result in
changes to conpensati on

4:33: 04 PM

M5. SANDOVAL, in response to Representative G ssna, said that
agency culture affected a lot of things. She referred to the
"hel ping professional,” soneone who got into the work because

they wanted to help, which was the nature of Child Protective
Ser vi ces.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 17, 2009



4:37:04 PM

M5. SANDOVAL, in response to Representative Seaton, said that
the allocation for five positions would bring the OCS case | oads
to a reasonable level, but that turnover and vacanci es conti nued
to make the work |load very difficult.

4:38: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the Bachelor of Social Wrker
(BSW or Master of Social Wrker (MSW prograns at the
University of Alaska should include a full senester of famly
I aw. He applauded the salary study, and he suggested that a
hi gher pay range with fewer PCNs m ght change the turnover rate.

4:40:10 PM

M5. SANDOVAL replied that the nunmber of cases for each PCN woul d
still be significant to do the job correctly. She shared her
surprise at the pay scale conparison with other departnents, and
she noted that a pay scale adjustnment would also be a help in
staff retention. She agreed that supervision was also very
important to bring training and coaching to new staff.

4:41: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expl ai ned that social workers used their
own car, and their own resources, and he asked if the workers
received the respect that they deserved.

4:41:54 PM

M5. SANDOVAL replied that things were okay but that there was
al ways room for inprovenent.

4:42:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the electronic reporting system
was wor ki ng.

M5. SANDOVAL said that the reporting system was not working

well. She relayed that the Online Resources for the Children of
Al aska (ORCA) system was working great, but that bandw dth and
connectivity were still an issue. She said that the new report

and the creation of the new case within ORCA were the npbst time
consumi ng. She discussed the creation of four regional in-take
hubs in areas with the better bandw dth. She offered that the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2009



remote sites would send information to these hubs, and then the
cases would be assigned back out to the regional offices. She
said that this would especially help the very small rural
of fices which did not have the personnel to enter all the data,
as well as handl e the case | oads.

4:45:12 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 4:45 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 17, 2009



